
 

 

HĀLĀWAI KŪMAU O KE KŌMIKE HOʻOKAHUA HAWAIʻI 
KEʻENA KULEANA HOʻOKIPA O HAWAIʻI 

 
HOʻOKAHUA HAWAIʻI STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING  

HAWAI‘I TOURISM AUTHORITY  
 

HĀLĀWAI KELEKAʻAʻIKE 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

 
Pōʻalima 6 ʻOkakopa 2023, 9:30 a.m. 
Friday, October 6, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. 

 
E hoʻolele ʻīwā ʻia ka hālāwai ma o ka Zoom.  Meeting will be live streaming via Zoom.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87501955189  
 

E noi ʻia paha ʻoe e kāinoa me kou inoa a leka uila paha. E ʻoluʻolu, e hoʻokomo i kou 
inoa piha akā hiki nō iā ʻoe ke hoʻohana i ka inoa kapakapa e like me kou makemake.  
You may be asked to enter your name or email. The Board requests that you enter your 
full name, but you may use a pseudonym or other identifier if you wish to remain 
anonymous. 
 

Kelepona / Call In: 1 719 359 4580 
Helu Hālāwai / Webinar ID: 875 0195 5189 

 
Hiki i ka lehulehu ke hōʻike manaʻo ma o ka palapala a i ʻole ma o ka waha. E kau palena ʻia ka 
hōʻike manaʻo waha (ma ke kino a i ʻole ma o ka Zoom) he ʻelima minuke ka lōʻihi no kēlā me 
kēia kumuhana. E kāinoa no ka hōʻike manaʻo waha ma ke pākaukau hoʻokipa ma ka lumi 
hālāwai. E kāinoa no ka hōʻike manaʻo waha ma o ka Zoom ma o ke pihi “Q&A.”  
Members of the public may provide written or oral testimony on agenda items. Oral 
testimony (in-person or via Zoom) will be limited to five minutes for each testifier per 
agenda item. Signup for oral testimony in-person will be at the registration table in the 
meeting room. Signup for oral testimony via Zoom will be accepted through the Q&A 
feature on Zoom. 
 
E hoʻohui ʻia nā palapala hōʻike manaʻo i hiki ma ka pūʻolo hālāwai. E leka uila ʻia nā palapala iā 
Carole Hagihara-Loo ma carole@gohta.net, a i ʻole, e lawe kino ʻia i ke keʻena. No nā palapala 
hōʻike manaʻo i hōʻea mai ma hope o ka paʻa o ka pūʻolo hālāwai (he 48 hola ma mua o ka hālāwai), 
e kākaʻahi ʻia nā kope i ke kōmike a e mākaukau no ka ʻike ʻia e ke anaina ma ka hālāwai.  
Written testimony received ahead of the preparation of the committee packet will be included 
in the packet. Email written testimony to Carole Hagihara-Loo at Carole@gohta.net or hand-
deliver or send via postal mail to the Hawai‘i Tourism Authority office, 1801 Kalākaua Avenue, 
1st Floor, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96815. Written testimony received after the issuance of the board 
packet (48 hours ahead of the meeting) will be distributed to the committee and available for 
public inspection at the meeting.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87501955189
mailto:carole@gohta.net


Hālāwai Kūmau O Ke Kōmike Hoʻokahua Hawaiʻi 
Pōʻalima, 6 ʻOkakopa 2023, 9:30 A.M. 
ʻAoʻao 2 o ka 3 

Ho’okahua Hawai‘i Standing Committee Meeting 
Friday, October 6, 2023, 9:30 A.M. 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Hoʻomaka a Wehena 

Call to Order and Opening Protocol 
 

2. Kikolā 
Roll Call to Announce Name of Participating Board Members and to Identify 
Who Else is Present with Board Member if Location is Nonpublic 
 

3. ʻĀpono Moʻolelo Hālāwai 
Approval of Minutes of the April 25, 2023 Hoʻokahua Hawaiʻi Standing 
Committee Meeting 
 

4. Kūkā a Hoʻoholo no ka Hana Pū ʻana me ka Hui ʻo Nāpili Noho no ke Kākoʻo iā 
Lahaina 
Discussion and/or Action on Participation with Nāpili Noho Hub’s 
Comprehensive Planning Process to Rebuild Lahaina  
 

5. Kūkā a Hoʻoholo no ko ka HTA Kōmike Alowelo Kuleana i Pili i ka Moʻomeheu 
Hawaiʻi, ke Kumuwaiwai Kūlohelohe, a me ke Kaiāulu 
Discussion and/or Action on the HTA’s Branding Standing Committee’s Brand 
Messaging and Positioning that is Reflective of Hawaiian Culture, Natural 
Resources and Community 
 

6. Hoʻokuʻu 
Adjournment 

 
*** ʻAha Hoʻokō: Ua hiki i ka Papa Alakaʻi ke mālama i kekahi hālāwai kūhelu i kū i ka Hawaiʻi 
Revised Statutes (HRS) § 92-4. E mālama ʻia kēia hālāwai kūhelu nei ma lalo o ka § 92-5 (a)(4), 
§ 92-5 (a)(8) and §201B-4(a)(2) no ka pono o ko ka Papa Alakaʻi kūkā a hoʻoholo ʻana i nā 
nīnūnē a nīnau i pili i ko ka Papa Alakaʻi kuleana me ko ka Papa Alakaʻi loio. He hālāwai kūhelu 
kēia i ʻole paulele ʻia ka ʻikepili a i mea hoʻi e mālama kūpono ai i ko Hawaiʻi ʻano, he wahi i kipa 
mau ʻia e nā malihini. 
 
*** Executive Session: The Board may conduct an executive session closed to the public 
pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes (HRS) § 92-4. The executive session will be conducted 
pursuant to HRS § 92-5 (a) (2), § 92-5 (a)(4), § 92-5 (a)(8) and §201B-4(a)(2) for the purpose of 
consulting with the board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the board’s powers, 
duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities; tsto consider hiring and evaluation of officers or 
employees, where consideration of matters affecting privacy will be involved; and to discuss 
information that must be kept confidential to protect Hawai‘i’s competitive advantage as a visitor 
destination.  
 
 
 



Hālāwai Kūmau O Ke Kōmike Hoʻokahua Hawaiʻi 
Pōʻalima, 6 ʻOkakopa 2023, 9:30 A.M. 
ʻAoʻao 3 o ka 3 

Ho’okahua Hawai‘i Standing Committee Meeting 
Friday, October 6, 2023, 9:30 A.M. 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
Inā he lawelawe a mea like paha e pono ai ke kīnānā, e hoʻokaʻaʻike aku me Carole Hagihara-
Loo ma (808)-973-2289 a ma ka leka uila  e like me ka wikiwiki i hiki, ʻaʻole hoʻi a ma ʻō aku o ka 
ʻekolu lā ma mua o ka hālāwai. Inā ʻike ʻia he noi i ka lā ma mua o ka hālāwai, e hoʻāʻo mākou e 
ʻimi i ka lawelawe a mea like paha, ʻaʻole naʻe hoʻi e hiki ke hoʻohiki ʻia ke kō o ua noi lā. Ua noa 
pū kēia hoʻolaha ma nā kino ʻokoʻa e like me ka mea pono. 
 
If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, contact Carole 
Hagihara-Loo at (808) 973-2289 or carole@gohta.net as soon as possible, preferably no later 
than 3 days prior to the meeting.  Requests made as early as possible have a greater 
likelihood of being fulfilled. Upon request, this notice is available in alternative/accessible 
formats.  
 
E like nō me ka ʻōlelo o ke Kānāwai Hawaiʻi i hoʻoholo ʻia māhele 92-32.7, e mālama ana ke 
Keʻena Kuleana Hoʻokipa o Hawaiʻi i kekahi wahi e hiki ai ka poʻe o ka lehulehu ke noho a komo 
pū ma nā hālāwai ma o ka hoʻohana ʻana i ka ʻenehana pāpaho (ICT). Aia ana kēia ʻenehana 
pāpaho ma ka papahele mua o ka lumi hoʻokipa i mua o ke Keʻena Kuleana Hoʻokipa o Hawaiʻi 
ma ka Hale ʻAha. ʻO 1801 Kalākaua Avenue, Honolulu, Hawaiʻi, 96815 ka helu wahi. 
 
In accordance with HRS section 92-3.7, the Hawaiʻi Tourism Authority will establish a remote 
viewing area for members of the public and board members to view and participate in meetings 
held using interactive conference technology (ICT). The ICT audiovisual connection will be 
located on the 1st Floor in the Lobby area fronting the Hawaii Tourism Authority at the Hawaiʻi 
Convention Center at 1801 Kalākaua Avenue, Honolulu, Hawaiʻi, 96815. 
 

mailto:carole@gohta.net


3 
Approval of the Minutes of the  

April 25, 2023 Committee Meeting 
 

 

 



Josh Green, M.D. 
Kia‘āina Governor 
 
John De Fries 
Pelekikena & Luna Ho‘okele 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
 

Ke’ena Kuleana Ho’opipa O Hawai’i 
Hawai‘i Convention Center 
1801 Kalākaua Avenue, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96815 
kelepona tel 808 973 2255 
kelepa‘i fax 808 973 2253 
kahua pa‘a web hawaiitourismauthority.org 
 

 

HO‘OKAHUA HAWAI‘I STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HAWAI‘I TOURISM AUTHORITY 

Tuesday, April 25, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

 
MINUTES OF HO‘OKAHUA HAWAI‘I STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Keone Downing (Chair), Mahina Duarte 
(Vice-Chair), Kimberly Agas, Stephanie Iona, 
Sig Zane 

NON-VOTING MEMBERS: George Kam 

MEMBERS NOT PRESENT: Mike White, Dylan Ching  

HTA STAFF PRESENT: Daniel Nāho‘opi‘i, Kalani Ka‘anā‘anā, 
Caroline Anderson, Maka Casson-Fisher, 
Ilihia Gionson, Carole Hagihara 

GUESTS Albie Miles, Paula Daniels, Malie Sanders, 
Noelani Shilling-Wheeler 

LEGAL COUNSEL: John Cole 

 

1. Call to Order and Opening Protocol  

Mr. Casson-Fisher called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. Mr. Casson-Fisher did the opening 
protocol.  

2. Roll Call to Announce Name of Participating Board Members and to Identify Who Else is 
Present with Board Member if Location is Non-public  

Mr. Casson-Fisher did the roll call. All confirmed that they were in attendance and alone.  

3. Approval of the Minutes of the February 16, 2023, Committee Meeting  

Chair Downing asked for a motion to approve the minutes. Ms. Duarte made a motion, and Ms. 
Agas seconded. Mr. Casson-Fisher did the roll call, and the motion passed unanimously.  

4. Presentation and Discussion on Hawaiʻi Food Systems  



    

2 
 

Ms. Duarte invited two subject matter experts regarding what is happening locally in Hawai‘i 
with the shift towards regenerative agriculture and sustainable food systems, as the HTA is 
making its transformation to a more regenerative model. There is a shift and a redirection 
towards a newer, more regenerative-led movement for regenerative agriculture. She spoke 
about initiatives the HTA is already doing, like the O‘ahu Good Food Pledge. Food systems are 
important as part of Hawaii’s' ‘āina and ancestral systems, including everyone.  

Ms. Duarte introduced Dr. Miles, an assistant professor of sustainable community food systems 
at the University of Hawai‘i, West O‘ahu. He earned his Ph.D. in Environmental Science, policy 
and management from UC Berkeley, and his research explores relationships between farming 
system biodiversity and ecosystem services from agriculture and looks at the structural 
obstacles and opportunities to sustainable food and farming systems. Ms. Duarte said she has 
worked with him for two years, and because of that work, she also met Ms. Daniels, a Maui 
native and Hawai‘i daughter. Ms. Daniels spent time at LA County, helping the school district to 
restructure their policies and procedures and build collective will towards food systems that are 
healthier and more equitable. Ms. Daniels is also the co-founder of What's Next and the chair of 
the Board for the Center for Good Food Purchasing. Ms. Duarte gave the floor to Ms. Daniels 
and Dr. Miles to talk about the role that the HTA can play in their work.  

Dr. Miles spoke about the context of food systems in Hawai‘i. The food system encompasses all 
the drivers, activities, and resources that go into producing, distributing, consuming food, and 
waste disposal. The food system has a profound influence on public health, culture, society, 
economics, and the environment. 

Dr. Miles explained why they need to transform elements of the food system. He said that 
increasingly there is a growing scientific literature pointing to the food and agriculture sector as 
a principal driver of adverse environmental and public health externalities or hidden costs. He 
spoke about a report in 2018, where 130 national academies of science and medicine across 
Africa, Asia, the Americas, and Europe pointed to the global and regional food systems as 
fundamentally underdelivering on public health and nutrition being a key driver of global 
ecological change. Importantly, greenhouse gas emissions contribute to climate change. Their 
high-level call is that food systems need to be fundamentally transformed to mitigate and adapt 
to climate change and promote public health and well-being.  

Dr. Miles spoke about CDC data on some of the hidden costs of the cheap food policy. He said 
food is abundant in the marketplace. For low-income residents, the types of food available to 
them and that they regularly consume are causing a range of adverse public health outcomes. 
Money is being lost due to chronic illnesses associated with a poor food system and diet. 
Significant health inequities exist between the average citizen in the state of Hawai‘i and the 



3 

Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islanders community, with premature mortality being three times 
that of the average Hawai‘i resident. This is due to chronic illness related to diet and other 
behavioral risk factors. It is important to understand that diet and access to quality food are 
one of the key drivers of some significant health inequities in the state. He said they do import 
a lot of foods that they consume. 85% to 90% of key commodities are imported. They do 
produce fresh fruits, vegetables, and fish, but other than that, they are importing everything.  
They have a shortage of commercial household or emergency food storage in Hawai‘i. At the 
same time, many residents have high food insecurity rates in the native Hawaiian community. 
This is a long-standing, problematic issue that they need to tackle systemically. Agriculture can 
play a role, but he said there is a need for food system transformation to address various 
systemic problems, including vulnerabilities. Because a lot of food is imported from the port of 
Honolulu, it is the bottleneck in the system. The Hawai‘i Emergency Management Agency 
suggests they have five to seven days’ food supply in Hawai‘i if the port of Honolulu had to 
close. They do not have any comprehensive resilience strategy in place. All the critical 
infrastructures are on the south of the island, and they do not have a plan to help build greater 
resilience and equity in the food system.  

Dr. Miles said there are a few critical vulnerabilities in the food system, including a high risk of 
future interruptions to the food supply given the changing climate. Hawai‘i is geographically 
isolated, with fewer support systems at its disposal, as pointed out by the Hawai‘i Emergency 
Management Agency (HiEMA). If there were to be a category three hurricane in the port of 
Honolulu, all the critical food storage and import infrastructure would be within the inundation 
zone. Even though they may store some food at the port of Honolulu, it is a risk. The food 
system is an important nexus for so many social, ecological, and cultural issues. If they can 
design and execute a comprehensive sustainable food system development initiative, they can 
tackle all the issues simultaneously. There are global and regional food system development 
initiatives, including the EAT-Lancet Commission. Hawai‘i could implement something like that 
to help them think about food system transformation. Across the continental United States, 
there are eighteen states, some multi-state regions, and municipalities with food system 
planning and implementation efforts, which they have been looking at. Based on what was 
happening around the continent, they wrote a grant to the U.S. Department of Agriculture and 
the Regional Food System Partnership Program about the initiative they are calling to transform 
Hawaii’s food system. The intention is to help them think systematically about how to create a 
new food and agriculture economy in Hawai‘i that integrates multiple issues they are all 
concerned about. Biocultural restoration, Hawaiian self-determination, climate change, 
resilience, public health, and nutrition are all things that they can solve simultaneously through 
food system change.  



    

4 
 

Dr. Miles said they have been working for the last couple of years on projects including an 
assessment of institutional purchasing. They are crafting an integrated state food policy 
framework to guide public policy and investment in Hawai‘i toward realizing important 
ecological, cultural, and social public health goals. Recently, they had their first Hawai‘i Food 
System Summit with several elected officials attending. The conversation was around the key 
public policies they need to put forward to make structural change happen in the Hawai‘i food 
system. They went through a prioritization process of a range of public policy ideas. The 
number one policy idea from the conversations was a state-level food system planning process. 
He said the bill might pass. The bill will initiate this planning process through a working group 
that will be housed in the Department of Agriculture. He showed a slide with research related 
to institutional purchasing and the tourism industry.  

Dr. Miles spoke about recent publications about consumers' and tourists' interests in local food 
products from Hawai‘i. One study from earlier in the year looked at the willingness of the U.S. 
mainland visitors who want to support local food and agriculture in Hawai‘i. The findings were:  

1. 78% of respondents stated they were ready to pay a higher price to purchase locally grown 
food, indicating a willingness to aid local agriculture by increasing restaurant/hotel meal bills. 

2. The majority of respondents indicated that they would pay up to 5% more for locally grown 
food.  

3. The average respondents were willing to pay between 6%-10% more for local food.  

4. Several respondents claimed willingness to pay 11%-50% more for locally produced meals in 
a restaurant or motel.  

5. More than 70% of survey respondents would be willing to pay an additional charge to 
support sustainable tourism in Hawai‘i 

Another study focused on the local population. The summary was that 31% of Hawai‘i resident 
respondents stated they are willing to spend 10-15% more on local food products. 

Dr. Miles spoke about the $40 million grant they received from the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, and it is intended to do a few things, including payment to growers for the 
production of climate-smart commodities. At the same time, there is money available to do a 
few things related to institutional purchasing and supporting local agriculture. There is money 
to assess the data needs of tourism industry actors to find out what is needed regarding 
institutional purchasing. At the same time, they will take the studies around willingness to pay 
and survey the Japanese tourism market, which is robust. He said there seems to be a 
significant amount of cumulated data suggesting that if some of the key tourist institutions 



    

5 
 

begin moving toward increased institutional purchasing, there is a market and a willingness to 
pay a premium for it. Dr. Miles turned the floor over to Ms. Daniels.  

Ms. Daniels spoke about the O‘ahu Good Food program. She has been part of it for the last 
couple of years. The program was developed as an initiative of the mayor’s office. It is based on 
the work she has been doing with the Center for Good Food Purchasing. She said it is a step 
that an institution can take to start making a difference in the food systems. It is the solution 
set.  The O‘ahu Good Food program has two components. One is the municipal institutions 
within the city. The city and county of Honolulu has been enrolled in the program through the 
directive of Mayor Blangiardi. There was also the extension of the program to the tourism 
industry. They had hotel and restaurant representatives, all taking the pledge to support the 
program.  

Ms. Daniels spoke about the program she developed. She said it is a big part of what the O‘ahu 
Good Food Program is about. She said it is about ideas on what else could be done. The Good 
Food Purchasing Program is based on the knowledge that there are issues in the areas and the 
problems they want to support. It is meant to be positively framing and shifting the way that 
institutions work to positively address those issues in the food systems to support everyone. 
They got input from the community and farmers on all the issues. The theory of change is the 
five values embedded in the system. Because of some of their success in L.A., where they went 
from less than 10% local purchasing produce to an average of 60% after being engaged in the 
program, people around the country have shown interest. Over 65 institutions are doing the 
work in over 25 cities nationwide. In addition to institutions being involved in the program, 
there has been an elected body's executive order or official declaration to officially endorse and 
have the program be part of the regional institutions. What is significant for the Board is that 
the program may help get to the Aloha Plus Challenge of 30% local by 2030.  

Ms. Daniels showed a slide of institutions enrolled in the program. The point of the program 
and the reason it was developed is that it is to help public institutions with large food services 
do more with public dollars. She explained how it works. They collect the data. At this stage, 
they have 5,000 supplier inputs in the database. There is over $1 billion of purchasing data 
collected. They can provide a lot of good information to an institution with a feedback loop so 
they can see how they are doing to make necessary shifts. 

Ms. Daniels spoke about the aggregate regional dashboard. The idea is to get a dashboard to 
get comparative data. She spoke about France's figures and the Egalim Law, which applies to 
the entire country's institutional food purchasing. They have their own certifications, as does 
the U.S. France, which has over 2,500 institutions in France that are reporting their information.  



    

6 
 

Ms. Daniels said the only airline that has information about food systems is Hawaiian Airlines. 
She said it would be great if all the tourism industries feeding into Hawai’i were giving tourists 
that kind of information, participating in the local farms, etc. The hotels could also have a lot 
more information displayed about Hawai‘i. 

Ms. Duarte asked Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā and Ms. Anderson if they could outline what the HTA was 
doing in terms of leading these kinds of efforts. Ms. Anderson thanked the presenters for their 
presentation. She said the HTA has been doing many things in Agri-tourism, trying to build that 
up, especially through the DMAPs. Each action plan talks about purchasing locally and 
supporting the agriculture industry. She said they have been working with CTAHR to develop 
Agri-tourism. The HTA partnered with them to develop a guide on developing Agri-tourism for 
those farms. The HTA has also partnered with enhancing the Hawai‘i Trails app for visitors and 
kama‘āina to know where the Agri-tourism business is, farmer's markets are, etc. The HTA has 
also been promoting that through its partners. Through DMAP efforts, she acknowledged Ms. 
Schilling-Wheeler and Ms. Orlans at the O‘ahu Visitors Bureau who are actively working with 
the city and county for the O‘ahu Good Food program. The HTA also sponsored OVB for the 
show a few months ago. She said the webinar is coming on May 5, where the HTA is partnering 
with Hawai‘i Food Health hui to connect the visitor industry with Hawai‘i food hubs.  

Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā said other initiatives like the Kūkulu program often fund local community-based 
non-profit groups restoring fertile lands and bringing them back into production as part of 
cultural revitalization. Everything is interconnected. All of those programs help get fresh food 
into the community. He spoke about the Aloha Hawai‘i website, the visitor portal, and the 
GoHawai‘i app, which is on the marketing side of the HTA. He said it also gets communicated 
via the island chapters and the international GMTs.  

Ms. Anderson mentioned that they are working to build the industry's capacity and will be 
conducting technical assistance programs to develop Agri-tourism in communities as well. Mr. 
Ka‘anā‘anā said another important metric is the $98 million spent by visitors on Hawai‘i 
agriculture products. As the HTA moves through their strategy on the branding and marketing 
side, they ensure the brand marketing plans have Made in Hawai‘i products and all the value-
added agricultural products. They encourage people to buy local and consume things locally.  

Ms. Duarte said it is exciting that they have two subject matter experts with a good grasp of the 
research and data. Ms. Duarte asked if there were any questions. Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā noted the 
HTA's partnership with the BDSD in DBEDT and their work. They have the kuleana to revamp 
and rebrand the Made in Hawai‘i logo and brand. They ensure alignment with the Hawaiian 
Islands brand and the Made in Hawai‘i, and also work with Sharon at the Department of 
Agriculture on the quality seal and the Made in Hawai‘i with Aloha.  



    

7 
 

Ms. Sanders asked Dr. Albie about his research study. She asked if he found there was a barrier 
for Hawai‘i because it costs a lot to lease, and if so, are there any ideas that came out of the 
study to help break down the barrier, to encourage systematic change. Dr. Albie said those 
studies did not look at structural obstacles to local agriculture, but in pilot studies in the past, 
the number one challenge in contributing to the goal of doubling food production in Hawai‘i is 
access to affordable land under secure lease terms, access to skilled labor, access to capital, 
access to food processing infrastructure, etc. He said the willingness to pay data might indicate 
that if institutions are willing to pass on some of the higher costs, then they can also 
compensate some of the growers, but there needs to be a range of policies put forward to 
make farming in Hawai‘i competitive with other places.  

Ms. Duarte asked if Ms. Iona had any comments. Ms. Iona said she worked with Ms. Daniels 
when they were engaged in the farm-to-state program in Kaua‘i. She provided great guidance 
to them, and they are on track for everything Ms. Daniels proposed. She shared that they have 
large farms, and the commitment was to help small farms. The problem with letting land to a 
small farmer is that they gave up because it was hard work. They then did another pilot project 
with a farmer at Kekaha; they paid for the land and water, helped him with infrastructure, and 
now he is a successful taro grower.  His commitment to them is to support the schools for a 
percentage, and he has done a great job. She said they had to give land that was absorbed into 
their companies to make it work. She said they would be producing more taro than anywhere in 
Hawai‘i. She said it is a commitment of funding.  

Ms. Duarte asked Ms. Daniels and Dr. Miles to highlight the important areas. Ms. Daniels said 
she is a big believer in data as a way to measure progress and make progress. She asked if the 
HTA would consider working with the institutions that serve food as part of the tourism 
industry, e.g., hotels, restaurants, etc. If they could voluntarily collect information on how much 
local purchasing they have from local producers and what crops they are purchasing and 
service, and then provide that information to a system, they would have a collective 
understanding of what is being done. Dr. Miles said that through the huge grant from the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, they want to begin assessing key actors within the tourism industry 
and understand what date needs they have to start considering taking steps in the institutional 
purchasing pathway. They want to meet with people in the tourism industry and then collect 
the data. Ms. Duarte said the legislators are also tracking the data. Ms. Duarte gave the floor to 
Chair Downing. Chair Downing thanked everyone for the great presentation and said he sees a 
lot of work. 

5. Status Update on the EDA Projects  



    

8 
 

Chair Downing gave the floor to Ms. Anderson. Ms. Anderson updated on the EDA grant. It was 
approved by the EDA on March 21. They are working on an agreement with DLNR for funding. 
The finance team is preparing the paperwork to draw the EDA fund. They met with the regional 
director of EDA on April 17, sharing about the HTA and the various projects for the EDA funds.  

Chair Downing said they had robust discussions about the EDA. He said there were seven 
projects, but the Waikīkī snorkel trail did not resonate with him. They had a Zoom meeting a 
year ago in June, and he had told DLNR about his reservations about the trail. He wanted to 
hear more about it before putting in the money. He said he had not received any information to 
date. When the money was agreed upon in March, he still had reservations about the trail 
project, and at that time he did not think it was prudent to go forward, not knowing what the 
plan was. He would still like to hold back on that project. He asked Ms. Anderson and Mr. 
Nāho‘opi‘i to be mindful of his mindset. He wondered if Mr. Nāho‘opi’i had any comments.  

Mr. Nāho‘opi‘i said they should be more specific on the issues for the project. Chair Downing 
said his issues are that they do not have a plan. They had a generalization on what they could 
do, but there was no more information. They said they are working on it, but he has an issue 
with the timeline because of the regulatory groups they need to go through, etc. He said they 
should use the money to enhance programs already being done. He said if the money could 
help the trail be the best it could be, he would rather see that than the trail being average. For 
the amount of money they need for the trail, they should have all their paperwork in place. He 
said the HTA is responsible for the money. Mr. Choy said if there is a chance that the DLNR 
project does not come to fruition, then they have to return the money to DLNR. As the finance 
director of the HTA, Mr. Choy wanted to ensure the Board fully understands the exposure they 
have. Perhaps they could either work with the DLNR. If the project does not come to fruition, 
they will have to return the funds. Mr. Choy said maybe there is a better way of utilizing the 
money. Chair Downing said they would look at the agenda item again in the full Board meeting. 
There was no further discussion or comments. The members said they could discuss it at the 
Board meeting. They all concurred. Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā made a note to keep that in mind. He asked 
Ms. Anderson whether they had closed out the DLNR contract for brushing and clearing, which 
is several years old. He said that needs to be sorted out.  

Chair Ching made a motion to bring the agenda item about the snorkel trail project, one of 
seven projects, to the full Board based on uncertainty on the funding, to be discussed there. 
Chair Downing made a motion, and Ms. Duarte seconded. Mr. Casson-Fisher did the roll call, 
and the motion passed unanimously. Ms. Anderson said for the other DLNR projects, there is 
state-wide trail capacity study, GO CARE equipment and educational materials, Ala Kahakai 



    

9 
 

interpretive plan, and the land stewardship program, to name a few. In addition, they have 
funding regarding the urban trail, and funding for branding programs. 

6. Status Update on the Waikīkī Historic Trail Project 

Chair Downing gave the floor to Ms. Anderson. Ms. Anderson updated on the program made on 
the Waikīkī historic trail. She thanked everyone for their hard work. The project is moving along 
and taking time because of approvals by different departments. They had a committee meeting 
with their advisory group to share what was happening with the project. Everyone in the 
advisory group was excited to move the project forward. She gave the floor to Ms. Sanders.  

Ms. Sanders gave a brief overview of what the historic trail is. In late 1990, the co-founder of 
NaHHA, Mr. Kanahele, researched many of the Waipana culturally significant sites in and 
around the Waikīkī area. He came up with a recommendation of 144 items published in a 1993 
publication called Restoring Hawaiinness to Waikīkī. Those items were all things that he felt 
needed addressing. By 1996, the city and county of Honolulu had adopted much of Dr. 
Kanahele's publication into the Waikīkī planning and program guide. The Waikīkī historic trail 
was one of the first major initiatives to come to fruition through a joint city and private sector 
effort to take on some of the action items included in the report. The project began 
construction in 1997, with the first marker installed in October 1998. By 1999 NaHHA had 
initiated walking toward the markers that were completed. In June 2002, the final marker was 
installed. Initially, 20 of 23 sites had an interpretive surfboard marker signage, and two of the 
remaining sites along the trail were included with new statues of historical figures. One marker 
is not a marker but a cultural site. The city sponsored seven markers, and NaHHA raised funds 
in the private sector for the remaining thirteen. They were expected to last twenty years. The 
markers are now 26 years old and are in dire need of refurbishment. The bronze encapsulating 
the marker needs attention, and the porcelain faces have long outlived their intended lifespan. 
Some markers are missing, some have been relocated during renovation, and others are in 
locations that are not conducive to a walking path or are out of place from where they could 
potentially or should be. Other sites that could use a marker of their own have not been 
previously included. Those are all opportunities to add content to those stories using 21st-
century technology and allowing for translation into multiple languages, making the markers 
more interactive and appealing to a broader audience.  

Dr. Kanahele had a quote where he talked about the greatest threat to Waikīkī being the two-
headed monster, local cynicism, and ignorance. He also said the best remedy for ignorance is 
education. Ms. Sanders concurred with that.  



    

10 
 

Ms. Sanders spoke about the committee support team that had been working on the project, 
and the cultural Advisory committee members and their credentials. She said they had an 
update meeting with the cultural Advisory committee sharing with them the process they went 
through and the next steps for moving forward. She showed a few pictures of the markers. 
There is an opportunity to move the markers to where they will be better cared for and 
appreciated by the public.  

Ms. Sanders showed a slide of a map of Waikīkī, where the markers are situated. She showed a 
slide with the suggested locations for the new trail and a slide with the estimated plan for the 
phases of the project. They are unsure how long it will take to extract the markers from the 
ground and then put them back in. They will do a test run to see how long it will take. There is 
an estimate of about three months for the pre-planning. They need to do a presentation in 
front of the Departmental Parks and Recreation as they also need to be involved in the 
permitting and permissions for the restoration project. They also have to do a presentation in 
front of the city council, which they do not have a date for, but it will be in May or June 2023. 
They have conducted the meeting in front of the Department of Parks and Recreation, and the 
next step is to go on a walking tour in May 2023 with DPR's representative to map out the sites 
to ensure the locations are good enough to house the markers.  

Ms. Anderson said they are using O‘ahu DMAP funds and EDA funds for the project. Chair 
Downing asked how much it would cost. Ms. Sanders said Ms. Anderson and Ms. Schilling-
Wheeler had assessed the hardware's cost for the markers and how much it would cost to 
install. The difficulty is not knowing how much the excavator will cost to extract the marker.  

Ms. Anderson asked Ms. Shilling-Wheeler about the O‘ahu DMAP funds for the hardware 
portion. Ms. Shilling-Wheeler said they are looking at the cost in two ways: hardware and 
software costs. The hardware is everything to do with the physical part of the markers, the 
excavation, etc. They have set aside $189,000 for that. The software cost is content and website 
costs. She gave the floor back to Ms. Anderson. Ms. Anderson said that amount is about 
$75,000 for content, a website, and an app.  

Chair Downing asked what it would look like so the Board could understand what it would 
entail. Ms. Sanders said they had conversations about using different materials, thinking about 
what is regenerative and sustainable and what is most socially responsible. Because the 
markers are made out of bronze, they do not want to put that in their landfill. They want to see 
if there is a way to save the metal part of the markers and restore them, using an expert that 
specializes in that. They have found an expert for that. They will also upgrade the technology of 
the porcelain faces. The city tends to like the marker shape, which has already been approved. 



    

11 
 

It speaks to the heritage of surfing and the cultural elements of Waikīkī, so they want to stick 
with that shape but refurbish the bronze.  

Ms. Shilling-Wheeler said the vision is to be able to give Waikīkī a space culturally and 
historically in the realm they live, to highlight what Waikīkī is, and for the residents and visitors 
to see how special Waikīkī is. With technology, they can learn more about it. It is an opportunity 
to guide people in understanding history, culture, and a sense of place.  

Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā added that the vision is to leverage technology in a way that makes the 
surfboard markers come alive physically. He said it is a mix of messaging, whether it is the 
Hawaiian name for that place or a surf break. He said it is also the Hawaiian language being 
presented accurately, the history of the place, etc. He also said they want to find a way to 
provide educational information about water safety or other tips that help the visitor learn the 
right thing to do, etc. In the virtual space, they can gamify it and start to earn badges, etc.  

Ms. Sanders said they plan to build it into the infrastructure in the marker. They plan to use QR 
codes so that it can be more interactive. There were some concerns about AR from the 
Advisory Committee, so they want to ensure they respect their concerns and address all those 
things.  

Mr. Ka‘anā‘anā said he also wants to make a case that it should be on GoHawai‘i. They should 
leverage GoHawai‘i and say all the microsites can live there. He said it is an incredible tool in six 
languages that they should leverage.  

Mr. Nāho‘opi‘i said nobody doubts the necessity and significance of the trail sites and the 
stories that go along with it. He recommends focussing on the necessary targets. He said there 
had been no mention of the visitors in Waikīkī, with 40% being Japanese. He said they must 
focus on the areas that meet the needs of the visitors and the residents. Ms. Anderson said 
being in the digital space is very powerful.  

Chair Downing said he wants everyone to dream big and keep it exciting to ensure it lasts for 30 
years. He does not want to do something just average; he wants something that makes 
everyone proud. He said everyone must dream big.  

Mr. Gionson spoke about one of his projects, Menehune Adventure Trail in Aulani, which is not 
different from what they were discussing. He asked Ms. Agas to share the Menehune 
Adventure Trail project, which can provide some inspiration and reference for this project. Ms. 
Agas said she liked the concept of setting up a marker that could be used not just in Waikīkī but 
throughout the island. Similarly, they use QR codes, which is easier than writing everything 
down. She said they need to do it more economically. It also gives them a sense of place where 



    

12 
 

it touches all the other senses. She said the markers are significant and beautiful and must 
continue evolving. Chair Downing said that is what they want to do: keep it exciting going 
forward. 

7. Adjournment 

Ms. Duarte made a motion to adjourn, and Mr. Kam seconded. Mr. Casson-Fisher did the roll 
call, and the motion passed unanimously. Mr. Casson-Fisher concluded the meeting. The 
meeting was adjourned at 5:54 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
______________________________________ 
Sheillane Reyes 
Recorder 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



4 
Discussion and/or Action on Participation with  

Nāpili Noho Hub’s Comprehensive Planning Process 
to Rebuild Lahaina 

 



Council Chair Director of Council Services 
  Alice L. Lee David M. Raatz, Jr., Esq. 
 
Vice-Chair Deputy Director of Council Services 
  Yuki Lei K. Sugimura Richelle K. Kawasaki, Esq. 
 
Presiding Officer Pro Tempore 
  Tasha Kama 
 
Councilmembers 
  Tom Cook 
  Gabe Johnson 
  Tamara Paltin 
  Keani N.W. Rawlins-Fernandez 
  Shane M. Sinenci 
  Nohelani U‘u-Hodgins 

 

 
COUNTY COUNCIL 

COUNTY OF MAUI 
200 S. HIGH STREET 

WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII  96793 
www.MauiCounty.us 

 
September 28, 2023 

 
Hawaii Tourism Authority 
1801 Kalakaua Avenue 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96815 
 
 
Dear Chair Miyasato, Vice Chair Paishon-Duarte, and members of the Hawaiʻi 
Tourism Authority, 
 
 
 On August 8, 2023, the Lahaina and Kula communities suffered a major 
tragedy in which at least 97 community members perished, and over 2,200 
homes and 800 businesses were lost along with 7,000 jobs. Lahaina was a major 
contributor to Mauiʻs economy. DBEDT estimated the loss from business 
closures and visitor spending is approximately $11 million per day since August 
9th.   
 
 In this time of deep loss, few if any community members in Lahaina seek 
to rebuild Lahaina exactly as it was. While our situation is beyond tragic, there 
is nonetheless a realization that we have a unique responsibility to come together 
as a community to develop a Lahaina community-driven vision for a regenerative, 
sustainable economy that provides living wage jobs, truly affordable housing, 
environmental restoration, and cultural vibrancy. 
 
 Our Nāpili Noho hub has initiated a community-led visioning process that 
is intended to inform a comprehensive approach to rebuilding Lahaina as a place 
of residence, a nexus for climate-smart, biocultural restoration, and 
stewardship, and a model for regenerative tourism and economic development. 
The Nāpili Noho hub has already garnered support from facilitation, planning, 
engineering, and construction expertise to forward short and long-term planning 
efforts. As such, our hub leaders, along with other Lahaina leaders, are 
convening multi-sectoral planning sessions over the next three to four months.  
 
 We invite the Hawaiʻi Tourism Authority to participate in our 
comprehensive planning process, recognizing the Authority is a key industry 
driver. We will likewise invite into our community planning efforts 



 
 
 
September 28, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
representatives from other key organizations and industries who can offer 
assistance as supporters of our community-led vision. 
 
 Together, we believe that we can further our community vision of a 
regenerative, sustainable Lahaina economy, ecology, and community rooted in 
our ancestral knowledge of place and community. We believe that our vision is 
consistent with Hawaiʻi Tourism Authority’s mantra to “Mālama Kuʻu Home,” - 
to care for Hawaiʻi’s natural resources, Hawaiian culture, and community, 
and to have those commitments resonate in the Authority’s brand marketing, 
that is, all four of the Authority’s foundational pillars.  
 
 Furthermore, we believe our Lahaina efforts will advance the principles 
and goals that we understand the Authority has signed on to support: the ʻĀina 
Aloha Economic Futures Declaration and Action Agenda, the latter of which 
articulates a recognition that “hoʻokipa (hospitality) requires that the mea 
hoʻokipa (host) have access to adequate space, place, and resource to truly fulfill 
the role and function of hoʻokipa” and that to achieve such a scenario, the vision 
of a “regenerative visitor economy” must include “supporting Hawaiʻi’s people 
and communities and their efforts to mālama ʻāīna (care for the land) and the 
cultural and natural resource of the ʻāina, oceans, streams, and skies.” 
 
 As Kānaka ʻŌiwi and multi-generational descendants of Lahaina, we 
implore the Hawaiʻi Tourism Authority to take a prominent support role in the 
disaster recovery efforts being led by our Lahaina community. Through these 
efforts, Lahaina can become the regenerative tourism and economic model that 
strikes a balance between ecological, economic, cultural, and social outcomes 
that will ensure that Hawaiʻi will continue to thrive as a beloved homeland and 
cherished place where visitors can feel energized and truly welcomed in 
abundant and sustainable environments by thriving local communities. 
 
 Mahalo for your leadership and commitment to healthy and vigorous ̒ āina, 
communities, and economies. 
 

Me ka ʻoiaʻiʻo a me ka mahalo, 
 
 
 
TAMARA PALTIN 
Councilmember 

 
 

 



5 
Discussion and/or Action on the  

HTA’s Branding Standing Committee’s  
Brand Messaging and Positioning that is  

Reflective of Hawaiian Culture, Natural Resources 
and Community 



Branding Standing Committee Charter & Goals

 Branding Standing Committee (Quorum: 4 members) 

Adopted November 18, 2021; July 28, 2022; August 31, 2023 

This standing committee is responsible for the review, evaluation, and 
recommendation of the Authority’s branding and marketing initiatives, 

programs, and/or activities which support the Authority’s vision, 
mission, goals and objectives including meetings, conventions, and 

incentive business.



 

 

DRAFT  
 

Branding Committee Description: 
 

 This standing committee is responsible for the review, evaluation, and 
recommendation of the Authority’s branding, marketing, and messaging 

initiatives, programs, and/or activities which support the Authority’s 
vision, mission, goals, and objectives including meetings, conventions, 

and incentive business. 
 

Roles and Responsibilities: 
 

HTA Staff, under the direction and oversight of the HTA Board, shall 
develop through a collaborative process with community, industry, all 

levels of government, subject matter experts, and contractors the 
following:  

 
Hawaiian Islands Brand 
Individual Island Brands 

Brand Guidelines 
Annual Brand Marketing Plan & Budget 

Key Performance Indicators & Performance Measures 


	Hookahua Hawaii Standing Committee Agenda 100623
	3
	03 Final Minutes 04-25-2023 Ho'okahua Hawai'i Meeting
	4
	04 - Ltr Councilmember Paltin_Napili Noho Hub
	5
	05 - Branding Standing Committee Charter & Goals
	Slide 1: Branding Standing Committee Charter & Goals 


